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6. William Ray, Sr. [ (s L'LM}

The following information on William Ray, Sr. is primarily summarized from a 1997 book entitled,
“The Families of Henry Nail and Mary Keller, and Thomas Ray and Elizabeth Pearce.’h This
thoroughly researched and documented book is a publication of the Nail-Ray Association of
Shelbyville, Indiana.

William Ray, Senior, was a Wake County farmer during Colonial and Revolutionary times. William
Ray, Sr. owned a 500 acre plantation on the south side of Moccasin Creek, about 17 miles northeast
of Raleigh in what was Craven County before 1746, Johnston County between 1746 and 1770, and
Wake County thereafter. Moccasin Creek has been a boundary dividing Wake and Franklin Counties
since 1779. The land owned by William Ray, Sr. in Wake County is east of the property owned by
Luke, Joseph, John and Nathan Ray. This William Ray, Sr. is not thought to be related to Nathan
Ray, unless a connection can be proven in an earlier generation. mp ELTLABETE
21 3% 35

William Ray, Sr. is the parent of at least six children (William, Jr., Baker, Thomas, Hudson, Charles
and Chesly ? — birth order unknown). William Ray, Senior was too old to fight in the Revolutionary
War, but three of his sons were just the right age. Late in 1779, William’s son, Thomas, about 17,
left home to join the Continental Army for the first of seven 3-month campaigns. Twenty-one months
later, Thomas returned from the war. Two of William’s other sons, Hudson and Charles, also served
and died in the conflict for American independence. Hudson Ray was a soldier in the North Carolina
Continental Line and died of wounds in the Battle of Eutaw Springs in September 1781. Charles Ray
was a soldier in the North Carolina Militia and died of smallpox while a prisoner of the British,
probably during 1781.
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15. ELIZABETH’ PEARCE (Mmm‘ NATHAN, PHILLIP®, GEORGE') was born Abt. 1767 in Franklin i
County, NC, and died November 13, 1844 in Shelby County , Indiana. She. married THOMAS RAY, RS i
March 29, 1783 in Franklin County, NC. He was born Abt, 1762 in Wake ke County, NC, and died

November 16, 1829 in Shelby County Indiana. Notes for THOMAS RAY, RS: -
Children of ELIZABETH PEARCE and THOMAS RAY are: Pension record No. W 9614 E

_}. HUDSON® RAY, m. MARGARET BYERLY, August 9, 1807. ]

i JAMES W. RAY, m. TABITHA BAsS, December 1, 1808. '
Notes for JAMES W. RAY: )
James later changed the spelling of his sumame to Wray. He became a AL < t‘ ki
well-known Methodist minister. He and his family are buried in Old r_ NA-7 F =

Union Cemetery, Shelbyville, Ind. /6\__ q3vti 35 N
i, GILLEY RAY, b. May 9, 1787, Franklin Co., NC; d. December 24, P ELITAGETR
/ 1870, DeWitt Co., IL.
iv. SUSANNAH RAY, m. BENJAMIN BASS, [&-’Z}fﬁél:’
V. MARTHA RAY, m. JOHN NaL, 1820. -
vi. CHANEY RAY, m. HUGH CAMPBELL, July 22, 1824, G. Py V2ot
vii. SARAHRAY. An 2 TUL 199
29. GILLEY® RAY (ELIZABETH® PEARCE, NATHAN*, NATHAN®, PHILLIP®, GEORGE") was born May 9, o Y
1787 in Franklin Co., NC, and died December 24, 1870 in DeWitt Co., IL. She married JOHN [.NV adasm Vo
BYERLY Abt. 1802, He was born February 11, 1785 in Randolph Co. NC and died September 10, J I A 23
1868 in DeWitt Co., IL. Children of GILLEY 'RAY and JOHN BYERLY are: wmAY 1157
i THOMAS DUGAN’ BYERLY. A TV a)
i ELIZABETHBYERLY, b. April 4, 1808, Randolph Co.,, NC; d. AR. e o
— 1880, DeWitt Co., IL, Buried in Texas Christian Cem.. Svs

ii. HENRY FARLEY BYERLY.
iv. CATHERINE BYERLY.
v. NANCY BYERLY.
vi. ELCANAH AUSTIN BYERLY.
vii. SAMUEL BLUFORD BYERLY.
/ viii., MARY BYERLY.

66. ELIZABETH' BYERLY (GILLEYS RAY, ELIZABETH® PEARCE, NATHAN*, NATHAN®, PHILLIP?,

GEORGE") was born April 4, 1808 in Randolph Co., NC, and died Aft. 1880 in DeWitt Co., IL, Buried

in Texas Christian Cem.. She married THOMAS H[I.L June 13, 1833 in Shelby Co., Ind.. He was bomn

Abt 1809 in Shelby Co., Ind., and died Bef. 1880 in DeWitt Co., IL. Children of ELIZABETH BYERLY and THOMAS HILL
ANNA ELIZA® HILL, b. Abt. 1834, Shelby Co., Ind.; d. Bef 1890, iii. CHLORAJANEHILL. vi. EMELINEHILL.
DeWitt Co., IL, Buried in Texas Christian Cem.. iv. CLARAANNHILL.  vii. HRAMHLL.
JAMES HILL. v. NANCYM. HoL.  viii. JOHNB.HIL.

161. ANNA ELIZA® HILL (ELIZ4BETH" BYERLY, GILLEY® RAY, ELIZABETH® PEARCE, NATHAN®,
NATHAN, PHILLIP®, GEORGE") was born Abt. 1834 in Shelby Co., Ind., and died Bef. 1890 in DeWitt
Co., IL, Buried in Texas Christian Cem.. She married DANIEL GLENN USA January 11, 1875 in
DeW'tt Co., [L. He was born Abt. 1821 in DeWitt Co., IL, and died March 30, 1900 in DeWitt Co.,

IL, Sunset Cem Quincy, 0.

Children of ANNA HILL and DANTEL GLENN are:
i. ROBERT ALEXANDER® GLENN.
ii. EL MYRA GLENMN.

iv. BEFSEYANNGLENN b. July 11, 1866, DeWitt Co., IL; d. December

6, 1922, Logan Co., IL Buried in Union Cem., Lincoln, IL.
ISRAEL JAY GLEN'N
vi. JULIA GLENN.
vii. ARDELLA GLENN.
viii. BARBARA ALICE GLENN.
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P11111 Ciarfiotte Pearce
Pearce =
PIIIDle:rflore 26 March 1796 (when Namcy Peirce, widow of Nathan Peirce, was M. to Updnnthffb BAw :u./@
) granted her 62 and 113 acres of theland to be divided [Franklin Co., NCWill P11112 Flzabeth Pearce O

. p- 36 Gel. 3)) ~ M. 19 March 1838 Franklin Co., NC
0 M 15;0;3? (maybe Weston) [ﬂ&ﬂc\i SARRH WESTER] & T o i

A 0 ;
B e M Pery[.sam s P ERRY, IO
teph rce : o :
Pl“::, . eF7§]%5 {less than 45 in 1800 Census and more fan 45 in 1810 Census P11114 Cherry Pearce O
" for Frarsklin Co.. NC) M. @ Octaber 1815 FranklinCo., NC
D. in Wake Co., NC f Y To Drewry Demon
M. to Elizabeth “ A
Parents of 4 children Z) wry 3 o~ n’ﬂn\lﬁn\’ FEO) P
P1112 Arthur Pearce o . b 2y WAy 118D WIRER
D. before 26 March 1796 (when INancy Peirce, w:dowdA:‘ml.lr Peirce, was A Zpsan U PosslfLe P,
granted 41 acres for her dower lnd [Franklin Co... KC Will Book B, p 3 e SEE B
36 (ref. 3)D) a Benrrm
M. to Nancy (see abowve) id fi 5 £5 UL Teok
Parents of 2 children (Philip Pearce was named guardiam far these children alier = ' p 1151 oy pearee mffx As EumROEAN
Arthur’s death) A P11122 Willie Pearce s TS
1 P1113 Phillip Pearce (fought in the Amerizn Revolutionary War) 2)3 N A
B. 1756-1765 {younger than 45 in 800 Census and oler than 45 in 1810 ﬂ T ™ R ﬁ‘f' s —HAD MeLchs
Census for Franklm Co., NC) - _ LAwWO EN MI0 1100
D. 7 buried old Bryant Stallings Graweyard, near Moccasa Creek in Franklie Cn &84
i ol CELria BETH PEARCE & RERRUS A A WM AT TR .
L STR
£) To Nancy Bunm TH om A3 Ry Hﬂ,‘D = ygzi&’:}a A L. Jehkw &ﬁ-’ -~ trvepr X
Parents of 6 children CREEXK,NUNERITAEE - CH AT <o, WE raeEr
/\ P1114 Elizabeth Pearce U Py WCW- AN CESToRS BUT LiPALO.
B. ca 1766 North Caratina NS R DRoTHER mD A~ WPaec i) Tal Panp ot .y
: helb iN s
D. gNtl):I\;euter 1844 Shelby Co.. IK, buried Ray/Cesster Cemetery, Shelby 5P, AOTsew AAY-& N R

£ M. Bond dated 29 March 1783 Fmnklim Co., NC @ondsman, Charles
H Upchurch; Witness, J. Rice)

A To Thomas Ray [R12] (Son ofgmm Ray, Sr.)
Parents of 7 children
O For record, see Thomas Ray [R12]
&> P1115 John Pearce
B. ca 1768
D. 03 January 1845 (age 77 years) buried Brandywine Centzr/Ray Cemetery,
Shelby Co., IN
& M. to Clarissa {TENTATIVEU] Cra R LRATTES U
Parents of 7, record of 1 child D/o @1ewrnd b, 1T
& P11151 Martha Pierce a
B. 27 February 1812 North Caralina
D. 30 Jasuary 1896
M. 25 December 1832 (Bible recerd) Shelby Co., IN
5 To Zebedee Ray [R1213] [Son tﬁfﬂﬂntsm [R121} and Margaret (Byerly)
Ray] B

|TzesEnEE RA7
PenriE OB/P
Tapcwane B

Y in RV
Q. CHARLES RAl & N R
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P11161 Willie (Wilks) Pearce
M. 12 Novernber 1823 Wde Co., NC

Parents of 12 children ﬂ A DO To SallyHoggwood (Bondmman, John [Pierce)
B For record, see Zebedee Ray [RIZ13)} & P11162 Beedy Pearce
£ P1116 James Peare [ b AeovT 195€] B 27 August 1816 Wake Co., NC
D. before 1795 Franklin Co., NC §Gsardiax account far his children was AL To Gearge Bell (Bosdsmm, Littleberrry Horton)
assumed by Phillip Pearce from the former guardian Jobm Martin [Franklin O P11163 Betsy Pearce
A Co. NC Will Book C, p. 40]. Ray [R12] was the administrator for & P11164 Penny Pearce
James Pearce’s estate [Franklin Co.. NC Will Book B. p. 19].) M. 21 March 1811 Wake Co., NC
M. to Mary (because she received one-third of fie estate of James A4 To Littieberry Horton (Budsman, Wiifiam Horton)
Fearcel ’ o A PI1165 Patsy Pearce
Parents of 5 children (named as orphans, wasld have beem minors in 1795 M. 19 December 1821 Wake Co., NC
when their fatker died) A Td Calvin Nowell  (Bondsman, John [Nowell)
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Southern Campaign American Revolution Pension Statements

Widow’s Pension Application for Thomas Ray, W-9614
Transcribed by David Ross

Elizabeth (Pearce) Ray's widow's deposition and the supporting deposition of her brother
John Pearce document the service of Thomas Ray and a number of his kin and neighbors in
Wake and Franklin counties, NC.

Elizabeth (Pearce) Ray's Deposition

State of Indiana
Shelby County, SS:

On this ninth day of May in the year eighteen hundred and forty-two, Before the
Probate Court in and for this County aforesaid now in session, personally appeared
Elizabeth Ray a resident of Addison Township in the County aforesaid aged Seventy five
(or seventy six) years, who being first duly Sworn according to law, doth on her oath make
the following declaration, in order to obtain the benefit of the provision made by the act of
congress passed July 7th 1838.

That She was married to Thomas Ray in the county of Franklin in the State of North
Carolina in the Latter part of the Winter in the year (she believes) seventeen hundred and
Eighty two, or 83, by a magistrate whose mane was Tanner Alfred (or Allford) She also
believes that said Allford was a Major in the Revolutionary War---The Maiden name of this
deponent was Elizabeth Pearce---The said Thomas Ray, the late husband of this applicant,
Served as this applicant verily believes in the Revolutionary War in the following
manner,~—-The said Thomas Ray about the year 1799 Resided with his father in Wake
County North Carolina near the line of Franklin County in the same State, and was drafted
to Serve in the army operating in the South, the said Thomas was not then of proper age to
be compelled to serve, but went into the service and served according to said draft, which
was for the period of three months, after that term expired, without returning home he hired
as a substitute and served another campaign of three months in the place and stead of Jacob
Wheeler, and after that campaign expired, the said Thomas was again drafted into the
Service, and Served successively in five campaigns of three months each, making in all the
time he served twenty-one months to the best of the recollection of this applicant. The said
Thomas returned home to see his father's family & friends between each of the campaigns
above mentioned (except between the first & second) and this affiant Saw him at each time
he so returned home---This affiant resided at that time with her father's family, on a
plantation adjoining to the plantation of Said Thomas' father except that a creek being the
line dividing Wake & Franklin Counties ran between them--This deponent cannot State the
Countries or places through which he passed, but she always understood that he served in
the States of North Carolina, South Carolina, and Georgia, and that he was in various
skirmishes and with and against the Tories at or near Bell's Mills on Deep River, and was in
the Battle with & against the British at Eutaw Springs, and in that battle was slightly
wounded in the neck and foot by Shots from the British, the scars of which wound he
distinctly retained during his life--—-He served under the following officers to wit: General
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Green [sic, Nathanael Greene], Major McLeary, Captain Samuel Sharp. This applicant does
not know whether any change of officers took place during the time of his service,---during
the first Campaign the said Thomas on account of the youth served generally as a waiter,
and afterward, during the residue of the time as a Common Soldier. The last time he
returned home from that Service, he brought with him one of the Red coats said to have
belonged to the British. This applicant believed that his services terminated Soon after the
battle at Eutaw Springs and She believes it was in the month of August, and in the year
1781 but she is not positive as to the time, particularly of the year She is not certain, as She
has no record of the time, or of the age of herself or her marriage, nor does she know of any
document, or any other certain evidence of the Service of said Thomas Ray. This deponent
does not know positively of her own knowledge, as to the Services of Said Thomas as
above mentioned, and knows of and verily believes the same only from the fact of her near
residence to and intimate acquaintance with said Thomas before and during the time &
since said Service, the Statements of Said Thomas concerning the Same, and the General
Conversation of the neighborhood on the subject at that time & Since, and the
conversations of those of the neighborhood who Served, some with him and others about
the same time, among whom were the following persons to wit, of those regularly enlisted,
John Segraves Senr & Hudson Ray (the last named was Brother to said Thomas & was
wounded in the Battle at Eutaw Spring and died in the Hospital).-—-The names of the
Militia who served of the neighborhood were Charles Ray, (He was taken prisoner by the
British at some time before the above named battle and died with the smallpox while a
prisoner), Daniel Ray, Jesse Burr (was also a prisoner with Charles Ray but returned), John
Pearce, William Wheeler, John Segraves Jun, Philbert Pearce, John Sanders, Thomas
Sanders, Alexander Tomblin, Anderson Nunery (?) Richard Pierce, James Pearce & Joseph
Parr.

This applicant further says that after the last period of the Service of said Thomas Ray
as above mentioned, She was married to said Thomas Ray as above stated but she is not
certain as to the year mentioned as to said marriage but believes it to have been early in
1782---but at the time of said marriage She was in her Sixteenth Year---The said Thomas
and this applicant as his wife moved from said Franklin County to Randolph and Thence to
Rowan County in the Same State & from thence to the State of Indiana about the year
1822. The said Thomas & this applicant always lived together as Husband & wife from the
time of said marriage until the death of said Thomas, which was on the 16 day of
November in the year 1829 in the County of Shelby, Indiana, since which time she has
never been married to any other person. They have had a family of 7 children, 6 of whom
are now living, the oldest of whom is Hudson Ray (now about 59 or 60 years of age next
August) & the second James Ray now fifty seven years of age (in January last) both of
whom reside in this county of Shelby & with whom she lives---

her
Elizabeth  Ray
mark
Sworn to and subscribed on the day and year first above written, before Jacob Kennerly
Judge of the Probate Court of said County in open Court
(signed) Jacob Kennerly Judge Probate Court Cty

And the said Jacob Kennerly Judge of the Court aforesaid does hereby declare his opinion
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after the investigation of the matters set forth in the above declaration, That Thomas Ray,

the late husband of the above applicant, was a revolutionary soldier, and served as stated by

the above applicant. And the Court further certifies that he has been acquainted with the

Said Applicant and several of her Children for Several years, particularly with Hudson &

James Ray, the latter of whom is a respectable clergyman in the Methodist Church-—and

that Said applicant is a person of respectability and her statement entitled to full credit.
(signed) Jacob Kennerly Judge Probate C.S. Cty

I, Sylvan B. Morris Clerk of the Shelby Circuit Court and Ex-officio Clerk of the Probate
Court of Said County of Shelby, in the State of Indiana, do hereby Certify that the
foregoing Contains the original proceedings of the said Probate Court in the matter of the
application of Elizabeth Ray for a pension.
In testimony whereof 1 have hereunto set my hand and the Seal of Said Probate Court
at Shelbyville this Ninth day of May A.D. 1842.
(signed) Sylvan B. Morris, Clerk

Deposition of John Pierce

State of Indiana Hancock county Be it known on this the 18th day of May in the year 1842
Before me Andrew F. Hatfield a Justice of the Peace of Said county of Hancock personally
appeared John Pierce a resident of Said county aged 76 years of Sound mind and memory
who being by me duly Sworn on his oath Saith that he is the brother of Elizabeth Ray of
Shelby county Indiana who is the widow of Thomas Ray deceased who died in Said county
of Shelby Twelve years ago last faul during the revolutionary war and from the earliest
recollection of this deponant he resided in the county of Franklin near the line of wake
county in the State of North Carolina with his fathers family and a near neighbour to the
father and family of Said Thomas Ray while the Said war was raging in Carolina and other
Southern States about the faul of the year 1779 and when this deponant was a lad he thinks
about 13 or 14 years of age the Said Thomas Ray being thereabout two years or upwards
older than this deponant he the Said Thomas was drafted to Serve in the army for 3 months
it was understood at that time among the family and neighbours that Said Thomas was not
quite of Sufficient age to be drafted but his father did not go to prove his age and he
Thomas went with Several others of the neighbours and Served and when his term expired
he hired as a Substitute for one of the neighbours Jacob Wheeler for 3 months and after that
time was out he returned home but was very Soon called out again and went Still on from
one campaign to another till the war was about threw in that part of the country I think he
must have served in all near two years from the general conversation and report in the
neighbourhood he was in the battle at Eutaw Springs he came home Soon after that battle
with a Slight wound on his neck and another on his foot he brought home one of the red
coats of the brittish there ware Several persons who I know out in the Service at the Same
time to wit---John Segraves Sen, John Segraves Jun, Charles Ray, Hudson Ray, Jesse buh
(sic, Booe) John Pierce, Richard Pierce, William Wheeler, Shadrach Medlin, Philbert
Peirce, John Rainwater, Anderson Nunery, James Peirce, Joseph Perry, Roger Craig,
Andrew Jackson, John Martin, Starling Cooper, Tanner Alford who was a Mager in the
Service I do not know where any of these persons are or wheather any of then are living
Except I have had a late account from Andrew Jackson he was yet alive at that time
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Hudson Ray was wounded in battle and died in the hauspital and Charles Ray died a
prisonor with the British they ware both Brothers to Said Thomas the next winter after the
war was over in those parts the Said Thomas Ray and my Sister Elizabeth was Married at
my fathers residence in Franklin county by Tanner Alford a Magistrate | was present and
Saw them Married they lived Together until the death of Said Thomas Ray as above
mentioned they had Several children to wit—Hudson Ray, James Ray, Gilley Ray, Sarah
Ray, Susanna Ray, Martha Ray, and Chaney Ray this deponant cannot State positively that
he is exactly correct as to the dates or as to his own age or the age of said Thomas Ray the
family Records of this deponants father and family was given up in the time of the war to
be Sold to pay expences of the war this deponant remembers that Some man came to his
fathers house for money or property for that purpose and his father had nothing for them
but the Bible which he Gave up and that had the record of their ages in it Elizabeth the
widow of Said Thomas is about Two years older than this deponant

his

(Signed) John  Pierce
mark

Witnesses---
Wiley Wray
James M. McCorkhill (?)

Sworn to and Subscribd the day and year first above written-—--Andrew F. Hatfield
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TIULS BAY ( whobe name : Frasklix Com
: &ppsars on the several deeds in '
:;;n:r(u;‘ fTaally gemealogists, was the only soldier of the revolutica by m'i.’.’ixi: x':::i '-i'x.
= T th:.b TINAS Mgy, 45 meant ). The scormnt ‘says that ke exnlisted from Yaks Gownty 43
g e 11:1; urdg saded in 1ML, Xe'was in the battle of JTLY SFRDNGE, Ix m::’u:n- —
h‘m ’ K 783-3 hs married ELILARNTX PRARSY ( perhaps PIXRCX ) who dled Xoveder 13 1844
cmmt m!mmm!!. Igd.i.a.na.. whoro he, hinmelf died Yovexber 16, 1829, Ascording to thi i
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PEARCE FAMILY. Elizabeth Pearce and Thomas Ray were married in 1783, Franklin Co., NC.
Ellizabeth was born abt 1764 NC, died 1844 Shelby Co., IN. She was the mother of seven children:
Hutson, James, Gilly, Susannah, Martha, Sarah, Chaney. Elizabeth was a daughter of Nathan Pearce and
Ann Westray, who were married abt 1752, Isle of Wight Co., VA (IoW, VA). Nathan was born bef. 1725
(21 yrs bef. 1746 first land record) d bef. 26 Mar 1796, Franklin Co., NC. Nathan was a son of Phillip
Pearce and Sarah (---). Phillip was born bef. 1663 (21 yrs bef. 1684 first record; gift of land from father)
died 1728 IoW, VA. Phillip was a son of George Pearce and Anne (---). George was born bef. 1648 (21
yrs bef. first record as Nansemond smith, 1669) died bef. 09 Apr 1705 IoW, VA. George was possibly a
son or brother of John Pearce born bef. 1645 (21 yrs bef. 1666 records). George Pearce received four
patents, totaling 3100 acres: one in 1674 for 2100 acres, one in 1681 for 2500 acres (including the 2100

acres in the 1674 patent plus an additional 400 acres), another one in 1681 for another 400 acres, and one
in 1701 for 200 acres.
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Ancestors of Elizabeith Pearce

I George Pearre I

Philip Pesrce
b: Bef 1642 inGle of Wight Co, VA
i d. 20 Mar §72723 in Isle of Wight Co. VA

l Anne J
Nathan Pearce

b Bet. 1720 - 1728 in Isle of Wight€o., VA
m in Isle of Wight Co., VA
d Bef Jan 1794 in Franklin Co., NC

as Sarah I William Westras
d: Bef. 09 Aug 165 inkle of Wight Co,, VA
Elizabeth Pearce
b Abt 1764 in NC William Westrsy
m 29 Mar 1783 in Franklin County, NC b: in Isle of Wiht Co,, VA )
d 27 Oct 1844 in Shelby Co . NC d Aft. 24 Dec 1731 1n Isle of Wight Co , V&
Elizabeh
John Westray d: in Iskeof Wght Co. VA

d: 23 Dec 1755n Isle of Wight Co. VA

Willian Exam
JAN d: AfLO3 Dec 1701 in Isle of Wight Ca.VA

William Exus
b. in Isleef Wght Co, VA
d: Bet. 28 Apr-25 Aug 1720 in Isleaf Wkt Co,,

Ann Westray
b Bef 1737 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
d Abt. 1810 in Franklin Co., NC

VA
Jane
Robert Eaum
b: in Isle o Wt Co, VA
d Bef. 26Feb¥737/38 in Isle of Wight Ca VA
I Susan I Richasd Wiliamsos
d- Bef B672in Suny Co., VA

Dr. Robet Willamson
——';n Exum J d: 1670 7 ke of Wight Co., VA

l Margamt Sharwood Brown J
George Walliamson
d: Bet. 138ul -3 Oct 1723 in kle of ®ight Co., ArthurAlien
VA b: Abt Oct 188 in & Andrews Parsh, Droitwich,
Worch hire, Engand

d: Abt Jun 189 in Smithville, Sumx Co, VA

——[ Joan orJanc Allen

Alice Texcker
b: O Je 16E
d: 1680m Iskcof Waght Co, VA

Patience Willamson Samud Briiger —

b: in Isle aWight Co, VA b: 1584 m Gudalming

d- in Isle of Wight Co, VA d: 31 Jaf 165F in Slimbridge, Glowester Co,,
England

JosephBadper

b: 28 FEt#630/31 m Dursley, Gloucesr Co,,
England

d: 15 AprE86 i le of Wight Co W0

Mary P

] b: 17 Jed 1505 iv Goddming,

Hester Britgmr

d: Bef. 1 75 mile of Wight Co, VA Robert Fiz

b: 1605

d: Bet. 06Em 1572 - 0% Jun 1674 i B of Wight
Co, VA

Hester Fit
d Aft. HE6m ke of Wight Co. VA
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Nathan Pearce

Nathan Pearce was the son of Philip and Sarah Pearce of Isle of Wight Co., VA, as
shown in Philip's will of 1728.2' As one of the younger sons, Nathan was in line to receive
his mother's 200-acre inheritance when she died, but he was willed no land directly. If
Nathan was 21 years old when he was first mentioned as an adult in a 1746 deed,’® then he
would have been born in or before 1725. Nathan married Ann Westray, daughter of John
Westray and Ann Exum, possibly as early as 1752 when Nathan and Ann’s brother Edmund
Westray were witnesses to a deed”’ but certainly before 1755 when John Westray named his
daughter Ann Pearce in his will.?® They appear to have had at least six children: Phillip,
Stephen, Arthur, James, Elizabeth, and John Pearce. Nathan died before 26 March 1796 in
Franklin Co., NC, when Ann (referred to by her nickname Nancy) Pearce received her dower
land.” Ann Pearce apparently died in Franklin Co., NC, after 181 0,%" the last year in which
she paid taxes on her dower land.

Nathan and Ann appeared to have moved to Northampton Co., NC, shortly after her
father died. In 1756, he purchased 160 acres in Northampton County®' and then added 102
acres in 17632 and 298 acres in 1766.%> In 1774, they sold all three tracts of land®* and had
moved to Wake Co., NC (in the area that would become Franklin County), by 177877

Elizabeth Pearce Ray

Elizabeth Pearce was born ca 1767, in Northampton Co., NC. She was a daughter of
Nathan Pearce and Nancy Westray. She married her neighbor Thomas Ray, son of William
Ray, in 1783 at her father's house in Franklin Co., NC, which was located across Moccasin
Creek from the Ray plantation in Wake Co., NC.*” Thomas Ray died 16 November 1829 in
Shelby Co., IN, and Elizabeth died on 27 October 1844 (date on her tombstone) or 13
November 1844 (death date among records associated with her Revolutionary War Pension)
in Shelby Co., IN.! She and Thomas Ray had seven children: Hutson, James, Gilly,
Susannah, Martha, Sarah, and Chaney." 37

Thomas Ray bought 73 acres in Franklin Co., NC, in 1787°% and another 42 acres in
17943 In 1795, Thomas and Elizabeth Ray sold all of their land in Franklin Co., NC,* and
moved to Randolph Co., NC. In 1797, Thomas bought two tracts of land in Randolph Co.,
NC—one of 114 acres*' and the other of 100 acres.** He added more land until he owned
more than 300 acres in Randolph Co., NC. In 1817, Thomas and Elizabeth Ray sold their 310
acres in Randolph Co., NC.* and moved to Rowan Co., NC. They bought 217 acres on Bear
Creek in Rowan Co., NC, in 1817* but stayed in this county for only about 5 years. In 1821,

~ they sold their land in Rowan Co., NC,45 and moved to Shelby Co., IN, where on 08
February 1823, Thomas Ray received a grant of 70.12 acres.*
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e Birth
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Elizabeth Pearce’s Branch of the Bridger Family & voniEl to i e

Lana Patterson, David Ross, and Janet Ross are planning to go to England in September with the -
Bridger Family Association to visit places associated with the families of our ancestors Jos_eph .
Bridger and his wife Hester Pitt. The Gloucestershire Historical Society has asked us to bring a brief

history of our family, including any famous descendants in our line.

Our latest common Bridger ancestor is Elizabeth Pearce who married Thomas Ray in Franklin Co.,
NC, on 29 March 1783 at her father’s home. Thomas and Elizabeth have more than 3000
documented descendants who were born in or before 1940, as shown in an online tree that is being
constructed on Ancestry.com. Elizabeth’s branch of the Bridger family includes her maternal line,
which contains her mother and grandmothers, so the women are listed first: Hester Pitt and her

husband Joseph Bridger, their daughter Hester Bridger and her husband George Williamson, their
daughter Patience Williamson and her husband Robert Exum, their daughter Ann Exum and her
husband John Westray, their daughter Ann Westray and her husband Nathan Pearce, and their
daughter Elizabeth Pearce who married Thomas Ray. These women were successful wives and
mothers, as shown by their numerous descendants, and many of whom were pioneers. In particular,
Hester Pitt and her unnamed mother were in Isle of Wight County, Virginia, in the 1630s, during the
early days of English colonial settlement. Ann Westray and her husband Nathan Pearce patented in
Wake Co., NC, during the American Revolution and so were early settlers there on land that had
likely not been owned previous by American settlers. Later, Ann Westray Pearce’s daughter
Elizabeth Pearce and her husband Thomas Ray participated in the vast American westward
movement. First, in North Carolina in the 1790s they moved from Wake and Franklin Counties
westward into Randolph County, and then 20 years later they moved west into Rowan County.
Finally in the 1820s, they made their last and longest westward move from Rowan County, North
Carolina, to Shelby County, Indiana, where Thomas Ray was granted about 70 acres of virgin land in about 1823.
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Proofs for the Ancestor Chart of Elizabeth Pearce, of Northampton, Wake,
and Franklin Counties in North Carolina; and Shelby Co., IN

Compiled by Janet Morgan Ross
(from material in The Families of Henry Nail and Mary Keller and of Thomas Ray and Elizabeth

Pearce, by the Nail-Ray and Allied Families Association, second edition, Shelbyville, IN, 1997;
and other sources as cited)

MATERNAL LINE OF ELIZABETH PEARCE

GENERATION 1: Elizabeth Pearce

Elizabeth was the daughter of Nathan and Ann Pearce as shown in The Families of Henry Nail
and Mary Keller and of Thomas Ray and Elizabeth Pearce.

GENERATION 2: Ann Westray Pearce

Ann was the first name of Nathan Pearce’s wife, as recorded in land, court, and tax records in
North Carolina, as shown in The Families of Henry Nail and Mary Keller and of Thomas Ray
and Elizabeth Pearce. The preponderance of evidence indicates that she was Ann Westray,
daughter of John Westray and Ann Exum and sister of Edmund Westray. Specifically, Ann
Pearce was identified as a daughter of John Westray of Isle of Wight Co., VA, (IoW) in his will
dated 23 December 1755 [IoW Will Book 6, p. 205 (IoW ref. 1, p. 181)], and among the 13
records in Isle of Wight Co., VA, in which Nathan Pearce was named, three also named Edmund
Westray, one of Ann’s brothers. In fact, Edmund was the only person named Westray who
appeared in Nathan’s records. Specifically, Nathan Pearce and Edmund Westray witnessed a
1752 deed in which Robert and Mary Coggan sold 100 acres to John Stephens [loW Deed Book
9, p. 70 (IoW ref. 6, p. 17)]. Edmund Westray also witnessed both of the 1757 deeds in which
Nathan Pearce sold his land in Isle of Wight Co., NC, after he moved to Northampton Co., NC—
on 03 March 1757, Nathan Pearce of Northampton Co., NC, sold 100 acres to Robert Holland
[loW Deed Book 9, pp. 466-467 (IoW ref. 6, p. 42)]; and on 05 December 1757, he sold 100
acres to William Bracy [loW Deed Book 9, p. 526 (IoW ref. 6, p. 46)]. (A more extensive
analysis of why I believe Nathan Pearce’s wife was Ann Westray can by found in “Analysis of
Records for Nathan Pearce and Ann Westray” that is posted separately on the Nail-Ray web
site.)

Records from Isle of Wight Co., VA

1752 November 23, Deed Book 9, p. 70. Robert Coggan and his wife Mary Coggan sold 100 acres to John Stephens.
Bounds: Mr. Beverly. Signed Robert Coggan and Mary (X) Coggan. Witnesses: Edmund Westray, Jacob
(X) Stephens, and Nathan Pearce. Recorded 01 February 1753. (IoW ref. 6, p. 17).
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1755 December 23, Will Book 6, p. 205. Will of John Westry. Dated 23 December 1755. Recorded 01 January
1756. Wife Ann. Sons: John, Edmund, and Benjamin. Daughters: Martha, Mary, and Ann Pearce.
Executors: sons John and Edmund. (IoW ref. 1, p. 181; and microfilm of original record)

1757 March 03, Deed Book 9, pp. 466-467. Nathan Pearce of Northampton Co., NC, sold 100 acres on east side of
the main Blackwater River to Robert Holland of Isle of Wight Co., VA, for £11. Bounds: Dirty Branch,
Thomas Inglish, and main road (part of patent granted George Pearce, Blacksmith, who gave it to Philip
Pearce on 09 September 1684). Signed Nathan (backward N, his mark) Perce. Witnesses: John Elay,
Edmund Westray, and William Seagraves. A memorandum that the land was delivered on 03 March 1760
was also recorded, signed by Nathan (backward N, his mark) Perce and witnessed by the same men. (loW
ref. 6, p. 42)

1757 December 05, Deed Book 9, p. 526. Nathan Pearce of Northampton Co., NC, sold 100 acres on Cypress
Swamp to William Bracy of Isle of Wight Co., VA. Bounds: Seagraves and Jones. Signed Nathan (X)
Pearce. Witnesses: William Seagraves, Hardy Edwards, and Edmund Westray. Recorded 05 January 1758.
(IoW ref. 6, p. 46)

GENERATION 3: Ann Exum Westray

Ann was the first name of John Westray’s wife, as recorded in his will dated 23 December 1755
[IoW Will Book 6, p. 205 (IoW ref. 1, p. 181)]. Ann was the daughter of Robert Exum, as
recorded in a 1751 (IoW Deed Book 8, p. 422) in which John Westray and his wife Ann and
David Atkins and his wife Susannah divided a 100-acre tract in Newport Parish of Isle of Wight
Co., VA, which they had inherited from their father Robert Exum. (Robert had inherited this land
from his father William Exum, who died in 1720.) Robert Exum’s wife was Patience
Williamson, as shown by the 1737 deeds (IloW Deed Book 5, p. 156 and p. 203) in which Robert
Exum and his wife Patience sold land that they had inherited from her father George Williamson.

Records from Isle of Wight Co., VA

1737 July 28-29, Deed Book 5, p. 203. Lease and Release. George Williamson of Henrico Co., VA, cooper; John
Williamson and Thomas Williamsen, both of Isle of Wight Co., VA, and planters; Robert Exum of Isle of
Wight Co., VA, planter, and Patience, his wife; Elizabeth Joyner of Isle of Wight Co., VA, widow; and
Julian Williamson of Isle of Wight Co., VA, spinster; sold about 250a near a place called Blackwater
Swamp in Newport Parish to Lewis Burwell of James City Co., VA, for £25. The tract was part of a patent
for 500a granted to Robert Williamson, uncle of sd George Williamson, on 30 October 1686, 200a of
which had been formerly sold by George Williamson, father of sd George Williamson and brother and heir
of the sd Robert Williamson, to John Surginer on 09 April 1691. Signed Geo: Wmson, John ( )
Williamson, Thos Williamson, Robt. Exum, Patience (X) Exum, Eliz’th (-) Joyner, and Julian (X)
Williamson. Witnesses: Elias Burtt, John Clayaton, Thomas Hardyman, and Thomas (X) Morein. Recorded
23 January 1737. (3)

1737 7br [September] 24, Deed Book 5, p. 156. Jno. Williamson, Thomas Williamson, Robert Exum and
Patience (his wife), Elizabeth Joyner, and Julian Williamson of Isle of Wight Co., VA, sole 200a on the
west side of the third swamp of the main Blackwater [Swamp?] to Arthur Crocker of the Lower Parish for a
valuable consideration. The tract was part of a patent for 500a granted to Robert Williamson on 30 October
1686 and it is now in the possession of sd Crocker. Signed John (I) Wmson, Thomas Williamson, Robert
Exum, Patience (+) Williamson [sic], Eliz’th (+) Joyner, Julian (+) Wmson. Witnesses: Geo: Wmson,
Jacob Darden Jr., and Sam’] (S) Atkinson. Recorded 26 September 1737. (3)

1751 November 07, Deed Book 8, p. 422. John Westray, the younger, and his wifc Ann Westray and David
Atkins and his wife Susannah Atkins divided 100a in Newport Parish. This tract’s history is as follows:
Robert Exum died seized of 100a which had been willed to him as Heir of the Body of William Exum,
dec’d., on 22 November 1720. Robert Exum, dec’d, left issue and coheirs the said Ann Exum and
Susannah Exum to be divided between them. Signed John Westray, Ann (X) Westray, David (X) Atkins,
and Susannah Atkins. Recorded 07 November 1751. (6)
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GENERATION 4: Patience Williamson Exum

Patience was the daughter of George Williamson, as shown by the deeds cited as proof for
Generation 3 above, in which she and her husband Robert Exum sold land that she had inherited
from her father, and also by his will dated 1721 (IoW The Great Book, p. 118). George
Williamson’s wife was named Hester as shown by the 1703 deeds (loW Deed Book 1, p. 389---
both on the same page), in which George and his wife Hester sold one tract to Phillip Rayford
and another tract to William Crumpler. That Hester was Hester Bridger, the daughter of Joseph
Bridger, is supported by the bequest made by George Williamson to his daughter Hester in his
will (see below in the transcription of George Williamson’s will in boldface type below).

Records from Isle of Wight Co., VA

1703 March 29, Deed Book 1, p. 389. George Williamson and his wife, Hester Williamson, sold 200a to Phillip
Rayford. Bounds: William Crumpler and the Blackwater Swamp. Signed George Williamson and Hester
(X) Williamson. Witnesses: Francis Williamson and William Crumpler. Recorded 09 April 1703. (4)

1703 , Deed Book 1, p. 389. George Williamson and his wife Hester Williamson sold 200a to William
Crumpler. Bounds: Blackwater Swamp. Signed George Williamson and Hester (X) Williamson. Witnesses:
Francis Williamson and Phillip (X) Rayford. Recorded: 09 April 1703. (4)

1721 April 26, The Great Book, p. 118. Will of George Williamson. Dated 26 April 1721. Recorded 28 May 1722.
Son George. Son Robert. Grandson Jacob Darden. To sons John and Robert, sd George’s land on the
Blackwater. Son Thomas. To daughter Hester, the plantation on which Mr. Rudben Proctor was living,
being land escheated by Col. Joseph Bridger and so made over to the mother of sd George and to Robert
Williamson, the brother of sd George by the sd Col. Bridger. Daughters Mary, Patience, Elizabeth, and
Juliana. Executor: son Robert. Witnesses: Francis Williamson, William Vasser, and Joseph Price. (1)

GENERATION 5: Hester Bridger Williamson

That Hester was the daughter of Joseph and Hester Bridger is supported by his will dated 1683
(IoW Will and Deed Book 2, p. 250 [IoW ref. 1]).

Record from Isle of Wight Co., VA

1683 August 03, Will and Deed Book 2, p. 250. Will of Jeseph Bridger. Dated 03 August 1683. Recorded 09 April
1685. Wife Hester (850a on which sd Joseph was living, formerly belonging to Capt. Upton and 300a
formerly belonging to Mr. Seward on which Mr. Izard, Ould Phillips, and William Lewis lived; reversion to
son Joseph with half of the tract at Curawoak and a tract at Monokin). Son Samuel (land bought from John
and William Gatlin on which John Cooke now lives and half of the plantation at Curaowoak), William (land
granted to sd Joseph by escheat of 850a, formerly belonging to Nathan Floyd, except what is disposed of by
me to Francis Hobbs, Mrs. Dorothy Bond, and William Blunt, also two tracts taken up by Col. Pitt, Mr.
William Burgh, and sd Joseph containing 3000a, except 600a sold to Lt. Col. John Pitt, part of this tract
leased by sd Joseph to Thomas Mandue, Richard Parker, William Worrell, Richard Jones, Thomas Reeves,
Robert Sturdy, and others, also tract leased to Christopher Wade). Daughters Martha Godwin, Mary,
Elizabeth, and Hester. Sd Joseph’s mother Mary Bridger. Executor: wife, with assistance of Lt. Col. John
Pitt, Thomas Pitt, and Col. Arthur Smith. Revocation of all Bequests to son Joseph on 18 October 1683.
Witnesses: James Bennett, Robert Pitt, Samuel Luck, and Richard Glover. (1)

GENERATION 6: Hester Pitt Bridger

That Hester was the daughter of Robert Pitt is supported by his will dated 1672 (IloW Will and
Deed Book 2, p. 128 [IoW ref. 1]).
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Record from Isle of Wight Co., VA

1672 June 06, Will and Deed Book 2, p. 128. Will of Robert Pitt. Dated 06 June 1672. Recorded 09 January 1674.
Daughters Martha Pitt, Mary Brassiuer, Hester Bridger, and Elizabeth Norsworthy. Son John.
Grandsons John Pitt, William Pitt, Robert Pitt, and Robert Pitt (son of Robert Pitt, decd). He left his
house and Land to be for the relief of poor women as a gift from his deceased wife Martha. Executor: son
John Pitt. Witnesses: Richard Jones and Thomas Hill. (1)

OTHER ANCESTORAL LINES

ANCESTORS OF ROBERT PITT

Proofs for the ancestors of Robert Pitt can be found in Colonial Families of Surry and Isle of
Wight Counties, Virginia, Volume 7, The Pitt Family of Bristol, Gloucester, Charleston,
Massachusetts and Isle of Wight County, Virginia by John A. Brayton, published for the author
by Clearfield Co., Baltimore, MD, 2002.

ANCESTORS OF JOSEPH BRIDGER

Proofs for the ancestors of Joseph Bridger can be found in Colonial Families of Surry and Isle of
Wight Counties, Virginia, Volume 10, Bridger of Godalming, Surrey; Slimbridge,
Gloucestershire; and Virginia by John A. Brayton, published for the author by Clearfield Co.,
Baltimore, MD.

ANCESTORS OF GEORGE WILLIAMSON

Proofs for the Allen ancestors of George Williamson can be found in “The Allen Family of Surry
County, Virginia: its British Roots and Early Generation in America” by William P. Carrell II
(The Virginia Genealogist, vol. 50, issues 1, 2, 3, and 4, 2006). It should be noted that Mr.
Carrell, who is the registrar of the Bridger Family Association, questioned whether George
Williamson’s wife Hester was in fact Hester Bridger in this article. However, with his
reservations noted, he has accepted that George Williamson’s wife was Hester Bridger, daughter
of Joseph Bridger.

That George Williamson was the son of Dr. Robert Williamson is supported by his 1669 will
(IoW Will and Deed Book 2, p. 85 [IoW ref. 1, for full text. see Brayton, IoW ref. 8]).

1669 February 16, Will and Deed Book 2, p. 85. Will of Robert Williamsen, Doctor of Physic. Dated 16 February
1669. Recorded 02 May 1670. He is to be buried as near as maybe to his late deceased father-in-law, Mr.
Arthur Allen. Wife Jone. Son Robert (younger than 18 years, land at Blackwater), sons George, Arthur,
and ffrancis. Executors in trust: Friends Major Nicholas Hill and Capt. John Grove. Executor: son Robert.
Witnesses: John Hardy and William Sherwood. Mr. Robert Burnett as marrying the relict of Robert
Williamson gave bond for the estate 02 November 1672. Security: Mr. Driver and Mr. Arthur Allen. (1, for
full text, see ref. 8)
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That Robert Williamson was the son of Richard Williamson is an assumption on my part that is
based on the names of men named Williamson who appeared in records in Isle of Wight Co.,
VA.

ANCESTORS OF ROBERT EXUM

That the father of Robert Exum was William Exum and his mother was named Susannah is based
on William’s 1720 will (IloW The Great Book 1719-1729, p. 51 [IoW ref. 1]).

1720 April 25, The Great Book 1719-1729, p. 51. Will of William Exum. Dated 25 April 1720. Recorded 25
August 1720. Sons John, William, Joseph, and Robert. Daughters Anne and Sarah. Wife Susan.
Witnesses: Thomas Atkinson, Francis Exum, and William Crocker. (1)

That William Exum was the son of William Exum and his wife Jane is based on his 1700 will
(IoW Will and Deed Book 2, p. 436 [IoW refs. 1 and 8)).

1700 December 03, Will and Deed Book I1, p. 436. Will of William Exum of the Upper Parish. Dated 03 December
1700. Recorded 10 February 1700/1701. Wife Jane. Daughter Deborah Jones. Sons William and Francis
(both received land on the Blackwater). Executor: wife. Witnesses: Nathaniel Whitby and George Gurney.

(1,8)

ANCESTORS OF JOHN WESTRAY

The father of John Westray was William Westray as shown by a 1724 deed in which William
gave his son John Westray 100 acres (IoW Great Book 2, p. 686 [IoW ref. 5]).

1724 January 20, Great Book, Vol. 2, p. 686. William Westwary (Westray?) of the lower parish gave 100a to his
son John Westray. Land was where William Seller lived. Bounds: The Long Branch, the land that John
Westwary bought from Henry West, and the Walnut Neck Branch. Signed William (X) Westwary.
Witnesses: John Jonson, John (X) Batten, and Mikel (X) Fulgum. Recorded 25 January 1724. (5)

That the father of William Westray appears to have been another William Westray is supported
by the fact that William Westray who died ca 1664 (Administrations and Probate, p. 8 [IoW ref.
1]) just before he had received 750 acres by patent on the Blackwater, which may have included
the land that he gave to his son John and his other sons Edmund and Benjamin.

1664 August 09, Administrations and Probate, p. 8. William Westuray by will appointed Elizabeth Westuray, his
relict, his executor. Dated 09 August 1664. Recorded 19 August 1664. Securities: Thomas Green and John
Vicars. (1)

1664 September 26, Patent Book 5, p. 380 (422) [Land Grants 1628-1674 in Boddie (2), p. 684]. Wm. Westray,
750a on a branch of the Blackwater, bet. on the brow of a hill by the swamp side, E. by Matthew Tomlin’s
land for transport of 15 persons. (2)
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ANCESTORS OF NATHAN PEARCE

That the parents of Nathan Pearce were Philip Pearce and his wife Sarah is supported by his
1727/1728 will IoW Will book 3, pp. 77-78 [IoW ref. 1]).

1727/8 January 16, Will Book 3, pp. 77-78. Will of Philip Pearce. Dated 16 January 1727. Presented 22 April 1728,
Leg. Wife: Sarah. Sons: Nathan, Arthur, Simon, Richard, and Thomas (Thomas was not mentioned in
microfilm of original, although there were some cuts in it and so his name may have been cut out?).
Executor: wife Sarah and son Richard. Witnesses: Richard Teasley, Peter Mackone, and George Teasley.
(1, microfilm of original)

That Philip Pearce’s father was George Pearce is supported by a 1724 deed in which Philip sold
land that had been part of the land granted to George Pearce by patent (Great Book 2, p. 693
[IoW ref. 5]). That Philip’s mother was Ann is shown by a 1681 deed (Will and Deed Book 1,
pp. 468-469 [IoW ref. 7]), in which George Pearce and his wife Ann assigned all right and title
to 400 acres in Isle of Wight Co., VA, to John and Thomas Williams.

1681 April 23, Will and Deed Book 1, pp. 468-469. George Peirce received 400a on the branches of the Blackwater
in Isle of Wight County. Bounds: Mr. Achley’s line, Phillip Rayford, and said Peirce’s land by a former
survey. Land was due for transport of 8 persons (not named in this record). George (GT) Peirce and Anne
(U) Peirce assigned all right and title to this land to John and Thomas Williams. Witness: Thomas (T) Jones.
Acknowledged in open court on 10 October 1681. Anne relinquished her dower right. Deed recorded 10
October 1681. (7)

1724 January 23, Deeds, Wills, . . ., Great Book Vol. 2, 1715-1726, p. 693. Philip Pierce, Sr., and Sarah (his wife)
of the upper parish sold 100a to John Teasley of the lower parish. Bounds: William Johnson. Land was part
of a patent for 2005a [?] granted George Pierce. Signed Phillip (X) Pierce. Witnesses: Richard (X) Pierce
and George (X) Pierce. (5)

Published Reference Books for Isle of Wight Co., VA

1. Chapman, Blanche Adams, Wills and Administrations of Isle of Wight Co., VA 1647-1800, Genealogical
Publishing, 1975.

2. Boddie, John Bennett, Seventeenth Century Isle of Wight County, Virginia, 1938, Chicago, reprinted Genealogical
Publishing, Baltimore, 1994.

3. TLC Genealogy, Isle of Wight County, Virginia Deeds 1736-1741, Miami Beach, FL, 1992.

4. Hopkins, W. L., Isle of Wight County, Virginia, Deeds 1647-1719, Court Orders 1693-1695 and Guardian
Accounts 1740-1767, Richmond, 1993.

5. Hopkins, W. L., Isle of Wight County, Virginia, Deeds 1720-1736, and Deeds 1741-1749, Richmond, 1994.

6. Hopkins, W. L., Isle of Wight County, Virginia Deeds, 1750-1782, Tberian Publishing, Athens, GA, 1995.

7. Brayton, John Anderson, Colonial Families of Surry and Isle of Wight Counties, Virginia, Volume 6, Isle of Wight
County, Virginia, Will & Deed Book 1 (1662-1688), Abstracts of Deeds, 1715, pp. 1-32, by author, ?date.

8. Brayton, John A., Colonial Families of Surry and Isle of Wight Counties, Virginia, Vol. 6, Isle of Wight County,
VA, Will and Deed Book 2 (1666-1719), by author, 2004.

9. Hopkins, William Lindsay, Suffold Parish Vestry Book 1749-1784 Nansemond Co., Virginia, and Newport Parish
Vestry Book, 1724-1772, Isle of Wight Co., VA, 1988, Iberian Publishing Co., Athens, GA.
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Ancestors of Elizabeth Pearce

| George Pearce

Philip Pearce
b: Bef. 1662 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
d: 20 Mar 1727/28 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

d: Bef. 09 Aug 1665 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

a
I Anne I
Nathan Pearce
b: Bet. 1720 - 1728 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
m: in Isle of Wight Co.,, VA
d: Bef. Jan 1794 in Franklin Co., NC
D Sarah William Westray
Elizabeth Pearce
b: Abt. 1764 inNC William Westray

m: 29 Mar 1783 in Franklin County, NC
d: 27 Oct 1844 in Shelby Co., NC

d: Aft. 24 Dec 1731 in Lsle

b: in Isle of Wight Co., VA

of Wight Co., VA

A

John Westray
d: 23 Dec 1755 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

Ann Westray

b: Bef. 1737 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
d: Abt. 1810 in Franklin Co., NC

Elizabeth
d: in Isle of Wight Co., VA

William Exum

d: Aft. 03 Dec 1701 in Esle of Wight Co,, VA

William Exum
b: in Isle of Wight Co., VA

d: Bet. 25 Apr - 25 Aug 1720 in Isle of Wight Co,,
VA

——| Ann Exam |

Jane
Robert Exum
b: in Iste of Wight Co., VA
d: Bef. 26 Feb 1737/38 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
| Susan | Richard Williamson
d: Bef. 1672 in Surry Co.,, VA
Dr. Robert Williamson
d: 1670 in Iste of Wight Co., VA
| Margaret Sherwood Brown
George Williamson
d: Bet. 13 Jul - 29 Oct 1723 in Iste of Wight Co., Arthur Allen
VA b: Abt. Oct 1608 in St. Andrews Parish, Droitwich,
Worchestershire, England

d: Abt. Jun 1669 in Smithville, Suiry Co., VA

—l Joan or Jane Allen

Patience Williamson
b: in Isle of Wight Co., VA
d: in Isle of Wight Co.,, VA

Alice Tucker
b: 01 Jun 1603
d: 1680 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

Samuel Bridger —

b: 1584 in Godalming

d: 31 Jul 1650 in Slimbridge, Gloucester Co.,
England

Joscph Bridger

England

b: 28 Feb 1630/31 in Dursley, Gloucester Co.,

d: 15 Apr 1686 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

Mary Purchase
b: 17 Jul 1603 in Godalming

Hester Bridger

d: Bef. 1723 in Isle of Wight Co., VA

Robert Pitt

b: 1605

d: Bet. 06 Jun 1672 - 09 Jun 1674 in Isle of Wight
Co.,VA

Hester Pitt

d: Aft. 1686 in Isle of Wight Co., VA
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Ancestors of Patience Williamson

Richard Willlsmson
& Bef. 1672 in Surry Co., VA
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Dr. Robert Willlazwon
d: 1670 in bsle of Wight Co., VA

‘Margaret Sherwood Browa

George Wi

Rismson
d: Bet. 13 Jul - 29 0ct 1723 in bsdo of Wight Co.,
VA

lizabech |

Arthor Allen
b: Abt, Oct 1603 in S1. Androws Parizh, Droitwich,
W .

& Abt Jan 1669 in Senithville, Samry Co, VA

—I Joan or Jane Allen

Alice Tucker
b: 01 Jun 1603
d: 1680 in Iale of Wight Co, VA

Richard

b: 1510

w: 1347
d: 10 Fob 159293 in Gadalming

Heary Bridges
b: Abt. 1480
Walter Flliott
b: Abe 1485
d: AbL 1510 in Wooersh

—

Lawrence Bridger

b: 1550 io Godslming

d: Bet. 24 Sep 1630 - 30 kun 1631 in Slimbridge
Manor, Berkeley Hundred, Glocestes Co., England

e Ll
IJ“IM l

_l

1] Jotn Elllott |

John Skinner
& 1472 ia Reigato

———-Imcm,msuml

L Mareeey Pt

|Juaa(,\ldom| I

d: 31 Jul 1650 i
England

Semud Bridgrr
b: 1584 in Godalming

|mu.m.__|]

Clesly Peto

Thomas Tenner
b:

: 1330
d: Abe. 23 May 1573 in Ockbam

-—|me

| | Oteer Petretsa |

I—Iam-vw I
Pxtience Willlamson
b:in lalo of Wight Ca.. VA [ peetrtce ]
d s lalo of Wight Co., VA
Josrpls Bridger
b: 28 Fob 163031 ia Denbey, Glowoester Co-, bl-_”lm C. Purchizse
d: 15 Ape 1616 in hle of Wight Co., VA ;‘:mww
Jahn Purchas
b Abu 1571 in Baiogsoke, RampabivorSoutials,
@231 May 1602 ia Godalming, Susvey Co., England
& AM. 27 Jaa 1616 ta Godalming, Sarrey Co.,
Englaod
= |
I:‘:?mmrws-nm I Wiltlsca Perler
) m L]
L b:mgilhtlminﬁnddmim,\wwm |m“°-"m°" |
Sumey Co. Eagid 11) Jokn ERlot
Joane B. Perter B: Abt 1495
b: 1580 & ing. Serrey Co., Eaglmd | m: Abt 1519
& 19 Apr 1638 in Godalning Archdoscanry., Sarrey
Ca, Esgind ¢ ) Godlyte Skiszacr
laurence C. Elliott
b isI9
;07 Nov 1582 in Godilming, Sasrcy Co., England
Nicholas Pet
_|0dym I
|J"”n | |mln|wud |
Joha D, Ingwood
b in Freashem
Joesse C. Eagwood
b: AbL 16 Fob 159596 in Godalming, Surwoy Co.,
Hester Bridgor i
d: Bef. 1723 in Islo of Wight Co., VA
Robert Udate
b:in Welly
::-m-nuu- I
oo |
|w-m |
Witiam Pist
b: 1520
Thomzas Plet
bo 1545
d: 1613 in SL Thormas Perish, Beistol, Eagland I—__]" ——
ares
I—'lldmllhvﬂnd |
‘Willlaza Piit
b: Bet. 1575 1580 Richard do Beagvols
w: 19 Jon 1603 in St. Thomas Perish, Bristol,
Ry e |
aaalmsmm.ummnms«.
‘Thomas Perish, Bristol, Englend
lw-unm— I
I Msnde Pykes
| b 1549 ia St Nichotas Perish, Beistol, England
d: 1610 in S1. Thomas Parish, Bristol, Englaod
Robert
b: 1608
d: Bot. 06 Jun 1672 - 09 Jao 1674 in lste of Wight
Ca. VA
[ watser Giote ]
| Mary Gibbe
b 1578 in Christ Chsrch Pasish, Bristol, Englend
4&: 1634 ia 51 Thormas Parish, Beistol, Englend

Hester Pt
d: At 1686 in bolo of Wight Co., VA

| Bustear
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GENEALOGY: Prio7l
' WNAEL = oA
NEW ANCESTORS FOR ELIZABETH PEARCE, s AT
WIFE OF THOMAS RAY WEwsh &;"_rmt.‘fﬁ
MARTHA TOMLINSON: CANDIDATE FOR THE FIRST WIFE OF ROBERT PITT 2.0 13
AND MOTHER OF HESTER PITT

|
i

for the Nail-Ray Associati?n by Janet Morgan Ross and Gary Pinson

Robert Pitt is the 4X great grandfather of our Elizabeth Pearce, wife of Thomas Ray. Robert was born
in 1605/1606 and baptized on 16 Mar 1605/1606 in St. Thomas Church, Bristol, England (1). The
most recent Pitt family genealogy, published by John A. Brayton (1), presented evidence that Robert
Pitt had at least three wives: his first wife and the mother of his older children (William, Robert,
John, Elizabeth, and Hester), whom he married about 1630, could not be identified; his second wife
was Elizabeth Stevens, sister of George Steyens, whom he married no earlier than 1644, and mother
of his daughter Mary, born about 1650 and wife of John Brasseur; and his third and last wife Martha
(maiden name not known), mother of his pr‘psumably youngest daughter Martha. He also cautioned
that there was another Robert Pitt living in Bristol during the 1630s who married Elizabeth Reynolds
on 10 Feb 1632/1633 at St. Stephen ChurclL Bristol, and had two sons William (b. 1635) and Robert
(b. 1637), both baptized at St. Stephen Chui'rch (1). Furthermore, he cautioned that he had not
searched all parish records in Bristol. In addition, in January 2018, many Parish records in Bristol are
still not online.

With these facts and cautions in mind, parish records from Bristol, England, posted online at
FindMyPast.com (2-5), have been used to identify a very good candidate for the first wife of Robert
Pitt. Her name was Martha Tomlinson. Martha, daughter of John Tomlinson, married Robert Pitt on
02 Jun 1629 in All Saints Church, Bristol, England (URL 1). Robert and Martha Pitt had at least three
children, as identified by their baptismal regords in Bristol: First, John Pitt, son of Robert Pitt, was
baptized on 07 Oct 1630 at All Saints Church, Bristol (URL 2), the church where Robert Pitt and
Martha Tomlinson were married. This date js 4 years earlier than John’s birth date as estimated by
Brayton (1) but is certainly “in the ballpark.,” John was apparently Martha’s oldest child, because he
is the only Pitt child mentioned in her father’s 1646 will (2). Second, Hester Pitt, daughter of Robert
and Martha Pitt, was baptized on 06 Apr 1686 in Bristol (unfortunately the name of the church was
not included in the transcription posted online; URL 3). This date compares favorably with about
1638, Hester’s birth date as estimated by Brayton (1). Third, Mary Pitt, daughter of Robert and
Martha Pitt, was baptized on 12 May 1638 in Bristol but died about a year later and was buried 04
Aug 1639 in Bristol (again, the name of the church was not included in the transcription, URL 4).
Brayton (1) found the baptismal record for Robert Pitt, son of Robert Pitt, who was baptized on 09
Dec 1631 at St. Thomas Church in Bristol. The date of Robert’s birth suggests that he was also
Martha’s son. Unfortunately, baptismal reccirds for William Pitt and Elizabeth Pitt have not yet been
found. Thus, baptismal records for four of L%e six oldest children of Robert Pitt have apparently now

been found and the births of these children occurred during the documented period that Robert and
Martha were married (1629-1646). |

[
Martha Tomlinson was likely about the age as Robert Pitt. Several pieces of information can be
used to estimate her birth year. First, she appears to be John Tomlinson’s oldest daughter, because
she was the first Tomlinson daughter mentigned in the list of daughters in the 1646 will of her father
(6) and was the first daughter to marry (see Ibelow; URL 5). Second, if she was in her early 20s when



her son John Pitt was born in 1630, then a
was alive on 13 Oct 1646, when her father
father did not identify her as Martha Pitt “c
Martha, and so her death could have occur
of the English Civil War, which made life
people died of the “pestilance that raged in
might have been among them?

Are the facts about Martha Tomlinson and
Robert Pitt and his family? Yes, they are, &
Brayton (1) estimates that Mary Pitt, daug}
Hester and John Pitt are also compatible w
probably Hester Pitt’s mother and our man
deceased wife Martha named in Robert Pit

rough estimate for her birth year would be 1608. Martha

signed his will and likely living in Bristol, because her

of Virginia.” No burial record has yet been found for
red any time after 1646, especially since this was the time

n Bristol very difficult. For example, in 1645, about 3000
the city” (7). I wonder if Robert Pitt’s son William Pitt

her children compatible with Brayton’s genealogy of
specially if Martha’s death occurred by 1650, when

iter of Elizabeth Steven, was born. The birth records for

ith Brayton’s genealogy. So, Martha Tomlinson is most

y times great grandmother. In addition, she is probably the
’s will. If so, there is evidence of only two wives for

Robert Pitt, Martha Tomlinson and Elizabeth Stevens.

Martha Tomlinson’s Parents

Martha’s father was John Tomlinson, as id

entified in the record of her marriage to Robert Pitt (2,

URL 1). John died in January 1648 in Bri

ol, England (8), and left a will that was dated 13 Oct 1646

and probated 20 Apr 1649 (6). In his will, John identified a son John Tomlinson; daughters Martha

Pitt, Elizabeth Browne, Mary Dorine, and
Pitt. No wife was mentioned.

John served an apprendiceship in Bristol
“free” on 05 May 1607 (9). In his 1609 wil
his wife Mary Tomlinson and gave eviden
was dated 24 Aug 1609 and proved 23 Oct
In 1615, John Tomlinson was Sheriff of B
Merchant Venturers; and in 1630, he was
William Jones were principal owners of th
Audit of 1628 (13) shows that William Pitt

Whetcombe; and grandson John Pitt, son of Martha

der John Fownes/ Fowens, a wealthy merchant, and was
(10), John Fownes left bequests to John Tomlinson and

e that Mary was the daughter of Tobias Langley. This will
1609, showing that John and Mary were married by 1609.
stol; in 1627, he was the Master of the Society of

e Mayor of Bristol (11). In 1628, John Tomlinson and
Endeavour, a 50-ton vessel (12). In addition, the Little
likely the son of William Pitt and Mary Gibbs, and John

Tomlinson held tenements on Redcliffe Street. Because Redcliffe Street is only about three blocks

long, members of the Pitt and Tomlinson f:

Robert Pitt and Martha Tomlinson married.

John Tomlinson appears to have been m
shown in charts in The Visitation of the Co
Langley Chart, Mary Langley, wife of Joh
Langley of Bristol and Cecilley Cooke. In

Tomlinson, was shown as the daughter of

Gloucestershire, England, and Meriel Thro
either chart. However, a published Berkele

ilies lived in the same neighborhood the year before

ed twice, to Mary Langley and to Margaret Berkeley, as
nty of Gloucester, taken in the year 1623 (14). In the
Tomlinson, was shown as the daughter of Tobias
¢ Berlekey Chart, Margaret Berkeley, wife of John
enry Berkeley (1540-1608) of Stoke Gifford,
kmorton. No children were identified for either wife in
family genealogy (15) states that John and Margaret had

one son Richard Tomlinson. Because Richard was not mentioned in his father’s will (6), he
presumably had died before 1646, when that will was signed. Only one baptismal record in the early
1600 has so far been identified in Bristol for a Richard Tomlinson: Richard, son of John Tomlinson

(spelled Tomlensonn), was baptized 20 Nov

church were included in the transcriptions.

1620 in Bristol (URL 7). Neither the mother nor the
hus, from the 1609 will of John Fownes (10) that shows



John Tomlinson and Martha Langley were
Tomlinson indicating that John Tomlinson
Langley appears to have been John Tomlin

married by 1609 and the birth year of 1620 for Richard

and Margaret Berkeley were married before 1620, Mary
son’s first wife and Margart Berkeley his second wife.

As shown by his will and his children’s baptismal records and marriage records (as referenced

at least nine children: 1) John, likely the oldest son born,

born about 1606; 2) Martha, likely the oldest daughter, born about 1608 and married Robert Pitt on
02 Jun 1629; 3) Marie, born in about 1610 and married John Dorine on 28 Apr 1631 in All Saints

above), John Tomlinson appears to have ha;l

Church, Bristol; 4) Elizabeth born in about

Saints Church, Bristol; 5) Anne born in abg
1637 in All Saints Church, Bristol; 6) Thon

1612 and married Hugh Browne on 01 Sep 1631 in All
ut 1614 and married Benjamine Whetcombe on 18 Apr
nas Tomlinson baptized on 11 Apr 1616 in All Saints

Church, Bristol; 7) Joane baptized on 19 Apr 1617 in Bristol; 8) Phillip Tomlinson baptized 23 Dec
1618 at All Saints Church, Bristol; and 9) Richard Tomlinson baptized 20 Nov 1620, Bristol.

Because Richard was the only son of Marg:

have been the mother of John’s other eight

Mary Langley’s Genealogy

Mary Langley’s parents and her 11-generat
oldest Langley listed, are shown in the Lan;

Gloucester, taken in the year 1623 (14).

aret Berkeley and John Tomlinson, Mary Langley must
children, including Martha.

ion Langley lineage from Mary to Sir Raffe Langley, the
oley family chart in The Visitation of the County of

1. Mary Langley’s parents: Tobias Langley (b. before 1569; d. 1598) and Cecilley Cooke (b. about
1568). Tobias and Cecilley had four children, Mary (m. John Tomlinson), John (b. 1588, baptized 20
Feb 1588, All Saints Church, Bristol) (5, URL 8), Anne (m. Thomas Vawer or Vaure), and Philip [2],
identified as of Mangerffeld [Mangotsfeild] in Gloster, Esq., High Shreene in 1619 (m. Catherin,
daughter of William Chester of Amesbury). Philip and Catherin had 6 children: Phillip Langley [3] (1
year old in 1623, and so born in 1622) and hls older sisters Elizabeth, Catherine, Mary, Jane, and
Penolapey Langley. |

!
2. Tobias Langley’s parents: Phillip Langiey [1], Esq., and Mary, daughter of William Pepwell of
Bristow [Bristol]. Phillip was Sheriff of antol in 1566, a Member of Parliament for Bristol in 1571
and 1572, and the Mayor of Bristol in 1581| {(7). William Pepwell or Pepwall was a Sheriff of Bristol
in 1542 and the Mayor of Bristol in 1557 aqd 1567 (7).

Mary’s brother Michael Pepwell was also active in Bristol business and politics. He was Sheriff in
1575 and Mayor in 1593 (7). Phillip Langle',y and Michael Pepwall, along with Richard Dane (bound
in £1000), Thomas Pitt [likely the father of our William Pitt, d. 1624], Thomas Barnes, Thomas
Mellins, Thomas Warren, John Sheppard, Thomas Taylor, and other merchants of Bristol, were
owners of the ship the Mary Fortune in the|1580s, likely about 1585 (/6). In 1574, Phillip and
Michael, along with other “burgesses of B stol” including Thomas Pitt, required “an allowance for
ship they have built called the Golden Lion,)” which was probably the largest English merchant man
of that time. In 1578, the Golden Lion “broke loose of its moorings and drove upon the rocks in

Hungroad” (17). The loss of this ship must have resulted a significant financial hit to the Langley,

Pepwell, and Pitt families. i

3. Phillip Langley [1]’s parents: William I angley [2], Esq., and Joane, daughter of Phillip Joanes
[Jones]. 1
|

|



4. William Langley [2]’s parents: John L,
of Nash.

5. John Langley’s father: William Langle

6. William Langley [1]’s parents: Allexa:
Belliddin.

7. Allexander Langley’s parents: Raffe L
of Began.

8. Raffe Langley [2]’s parents: Stephen 1|
St. Nicholas.

9. Stephen Langley’s parents: Humffrey |
Vichan of Christ Chruch.

10. Humffrey Langley’s father: Sir Raff ]

Maternal Line of Elizabeth Pearce

With the identification of Martha Tomlinsa
documentary evidence, as referenced, Elizg
generations from Hester to her mother Mar

grandmother Mary Langley (b. about 1586
Cooke (b. about 1568 in Bristol). Bristol is
Pitt lineage is included!

angley, Esq., and Margerett, daughter of William Lluellin

y [11.

nder Langley and a daughter of Thom. Bleddin or

angley [2], Esq., and Margery, daughter of Jenkin Kemys

angley, Esq., and Elizebeth, daughter of Raffe Corbett of

Langley and Catherin, daughter and coheir of Phillip

Langley [1] of Christ Church in com. Monmouth, Kat.

n as Hester Pitt’s mother and its support with

beth’s maternal line is extended back three more

tha Tomlinson (b. about 1608 likely in Bristol), her
likely in Bristol), and her great grandmother Cecilley
clearly a home town for our family, especially when our

These newly discovered ancestors of Hest
the Nail-Ray Ancestry Tree (2015 Nail-R

r Pitt, and also Elizabeth Pearce, have been inserted into
Families(2)). Anyone wishing an invitation to the tree

should contact Janet Ross at nail.ray.family@gmail,com.
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